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In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act of the State of New Jersey adequate notice of this meeting has been mailed to The Daily Record and posted at the municipal building.

ROLL CALL:
Members Present:   Joe Fleischner , Judy Johnson, David Koptyra, John Mania, Nelson Russell, Scott Van Ness, Kim Mott, Howie Weiss 

Members Excused:   Brian Schaechter

Members Absent:  Dan Nelsen 

Professionals Attending:  Chuck McGroarty, Planning Consultant, Eugene Buczynski, Township Engineer, Tiena Cofoni, Esq., Catherine Natafalusy, Planning Administrator/Secretary

Professionals Excused:  Edward Buzak, Esq.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

April 10, 2014 Public Meeting
	Motion:		Scott Van Ness
	Second:		David Koptyra

Roll Call:
	Judy Johnson		- yes
	David Koptyra		- yes
	Nelson Russell		- yes
	Scott Van Ness		- yes
	Howie Weiss		- yes

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTIONS

Resolution #PB 13-23 – Carmen Cuba-Vergara – (Block 2200, Lot 21)
	Motion:		John Mania
	Second:		Scott Van Ness

Roll Call:
	David Koptyra		- yes
	John Mania		- yes
	Scott Van Ness		- yes
	Kim Mott		- yes
	Howie Weiss		- yes

Resolution #PB 14-04 – Louise Johnson – (Block 3403, Lot 2)
	Motion:		Scott Van Ness
	Second:		John Mania

Roll Call:
	David Koptyra		- yes
	John Mania		- yes
	Scott Van Ness		- yes
	Kim Mott		- yes
	Howie Weiss		- yes

COMMITTEE REPORTS

MR. WEISS:		All right let’s move into committee reports.  Ms. Johnson anything from the Mayor?

MS. JOHNSON:		There is not.

MR. WEISS:		All right we’ll just supplement that report as brief as it was with just a note maybe an FYI that I heard yesterday Catherine and I were confirmed this morning that Michael Koroski has resigned from the Planning Board.  The good news is that Michael took a promotion that will require him to have some evening hours so he thought it would be best that he resigned.  And so I thank Michael for his service he was grateful for the opportunity to sit on the Planning Board and with that being said the Mayor has already appointed a replacement, a woman by the name of Sandra Davis but she goes under the name of Stotler.  So Ms. Stotler was going to try to make it here this evening and if not perhaps come and attend and if she does show up by the end of the meeting we’ll introduce you to Ms. Stotler.  And that’s all I had to supplement the Mayor’s report.  John?

MR. MANIA:		Nothing from the Council.

MR. WEISS:		Nothing from Council.  Environmental commission Nelson?

MR. RUSSELL:		The High School is replacing a grass field with a turf field and the environmental commission will not participate in the carnival in July.

MR. WEISS:		With the news of the High School putting in a turf field are they going to be coming in front of the Planning Board for any reasons?  Catherine have you seen anything?

MS. NATAFALUSY:	I haven’t heard anything.  

MR. WEISS:		Do you know of any issues with that?  I heard something about wetland problems.

MR. RUSSELL:		I’m not aware.

MR. WEISS:		The Environmental Commission hasn’t heard okay.

MS. NATAFALUSY:	I heard the same thing.

MR. WEISS:		I don’t think impervious coverage they have a lot of property there.  So I don’t know actually Joe and I spoke about this this morning, if it’s a wetlands issue it’s something that’s bigger than this Planning Board so I guess they’ll have to do what they have to do.  Ordinance Committee Joe?

MR. FLEISCHNER:	No report.

MR. WEISS:		I have nothing from the street naming committee.  Open space committee?

MR. KOPTYRA:		No.

MR. WEISS:		Nothing from David okay let’s move into our agenda.

EXTENSION REQUEST

APPLICATION #PB 13-04 – AIMEE KREWINSKI – (BLOCK 6900, LOT 19)

MR. WEISS:		The first item tonight is the extension request PB 13-04 Aimee Krewinski for a use variance/site plan approval on Block 6900, Lot 19 which is 6 Bartley-Chester Road.  Aimee there you are please come up to the podium.  You’ve been here multiple times you know the process don’t even site down our attorney will swear you in.

(AIMEE KREWINSKI SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MS. COFONI:		If you could state your full name spelling your last name and giving your business address for the record please.

MS. KREWINSKI:	Aimee Krewinski (K-R-E-W-I-N-S-K-I) business Flanders Valley Country Day School 6 Bartley-Chester Road, Flanders, NJ  07836.

MS. COFONI:		Thank you.

MR. WEISS:		Sit down relax.  Ms. Krewinski we’re aware of the Planning Board gave you an approval to . . . tell us it had to do with a gymnasium.

MS. KREWINSKI:	A gym correct.  It just took a little longer to get the plans and then family . . .

MR. WEISS:		Okay so I understand.  So Ms. Krewinski is here because her approval is expired is that correct?

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:	One year on a use variance.

MR. WEISS:		One year on a use variance so what we wanted to do is Ms. Krewinski is just explain to the Board that plans came and later she had some family issues and is requesting an extension.  Legally do we have, is there a one year and is there any kind of guidance?

MS. COFONI:		No there isn’t.

MR. WEISS:		Are you requesting a specific time period?

MS. KREWINSKI:	I would just say another year.

MR. WEISS:		Fair enough you just heard Ms. Krewinski ask for another year because of the hardship that she endured.  Does anybody have any concerns?  Anything you’d like to put on the record?  Catherine do you have anything?

MS. NATAFALUSY:	No (inaudible) the resolution was adopted on July 18th.  

MS. COFONI:		And you get one year from July 18th.

MR. WEISS:		Okay so that being said I suppose I could open it to the public if anybody has any questions for Ms. Krewinski as to her testimony this evening?  Seeing none I’ll close it to the public.  Let me turn it to the Planning Board.

MR. MANIA:		Mr. Chairman I move for the approval of the extension request of PB 13-04.

MR. VAN NESS:		Second.

MR. WEISS:		Is there any conversation?  Seeing none Catherine roll call.

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Joe Fleischner		- yes
			Judy Johnson		- yes
			David Koptyra		- yes
			John Mania		- yes
			Nelson Russell		- yes
			Scott Van Ness		- yes
			Kim Mott		- yes
			Howie Weiss		- yes

MR. WEISS:		And Aimee we’re looking forward to seeing progress on this project.

MS. KREWINSKI:	Thank you.

MR. WEISS:		Good luck see you soon.

EXTENSION REQUEST

APPLICATION #PB 12-05 – MOUNT OLIVE INDUSTRIAL REALTY – (BLOCK 104, LOT 4)
(SUCCESSOR APPLICANT:  EXETER 700 INTERNATIONAL LAND LLC) – FINAL MAJOR SUB.
APPLICATION #PB 12-11 – MOUNT OLIVE INDUSTRIAL REALTY – (BLOCK 104, LOT 4)
(SUCCESSOR APPLICANT:  EXETER 700 INTERNATIONAL LAND LLC) – SOIL REMOVAL

MR. WEISS:		Our next extension request is for PB 12-05 Mt. Olive Industrial Realty Successor applicant is Exeter 700 International Land LLC Final Major Subdivision on PB 12-11 Mt. Olive Industrial Realty Successor applicant Exeter 700 International Land LLC Soil Removal permit at Block 104, Lot 4 at 700 International Drive and I assume we have Ms. Berger?

MS. BERGER:		Yes thank you good memory.  

MR. WEISS:		You’re welcome.

MS. BERGER:		Except one correction it’s not subdivision its site plan.

MR. WEISS:		Final Major Site Plan?

MS. BERGER:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		Duly noted.

MS. BERGER:		We’re here this evening for a one year extension, for those of you who don’t know my client through different entities purchased 12 properties in the Mt. Olive Industrial Center in May of 2013.  And since that time they’ve come before your Board, they’ve sold property, they’ve gone in for development approval on other properties they’ve determined what they have and what they need and this is a project that did have approval and they’d like to continue the approval because we’re going to move forward.  And that’s why we’re here today so although the approval is older it’s only a year that our client has had the properties and it has been moving forward as you can tell.   

MR. WEISS:		Okay so I think we have that the record is accurate, correct?  So you’re here asking for a one year extension to your existing approval.

MS. BERGER:		Yes, yes.

MR. WEISS:		Why don’t you give us a little background what’s gone on in a year and what brings you here tonight.

MS. BERGER:		Well what’s gone on in the year is the fact again that my client has purchased all of these properties in the industrial center.  We’ve done some improvements to some of them where we’ve gotten some approval; we’ve helped with getting tenants in other properties.  There’s an application this evening of a property we’ve sold in the complex that’s being developed again this evening so we’ve gone ahead and moved forward but you can’t do everything on 12 different properties all at once.

MR. WEISS:		I didn’t know that.

MS. BERGER:		And I think my client has been taking an active affirmative approach to getting the ones that aren’t developed, developed or sold, etc.  And so that’s why we’d like the extension.  And just for the record this has been approved for a 61,000 square foot mixed use building its assembly, warehouse and office I think the office is about 10,000 to 12,000 square feet and the balance is almost even between the assembly and warehouse.  

MR. WEISS:		Okay Gene are you aware of any issues?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	No the only thing maybe if Wendy if you know the status of any permits, DEP permits?

MS. BERGER:		I know they were granted but where they are now . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	I can’t recall I have all of the permits I believe?

MS. BERGER:		Yes, yes everything has the permits.

MR. WEISS:		Anything else Gene?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	No that’s all it’s only been a year everything should still be in effect we’re fine.

MR. WEISS:		Okay.  Wendy are you going to have any other experts?

MS. BERGER:		I just have it in case you need but I didn’t think it was necessary.

MR. WEISS:		Anybody from the Planning Board like to hear from Mr. Ploussas for any reason?  Okay any comments or questions for Ms. Berger?  Let me open it to the public if anybody from the public has any questions for Ms. Berger based on the testimony delivered.  Seeing none I’ll close it to the public.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	I move that we approved PB 12-05 for a one year extension.

MR. MANIA:		Second.

MR. WEISS:		Thank you Mr. Fleischner, Mr. Mania thank you.  Any comments or conversations?  Seeing none Catherine roll call.

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Joe Fleischner		- yes
			Judy Johnson		- yes
			David Koptyra		- yes
			John Mania		- yes
			Nelson Russell		- yes
			Scott Van Ness		- yes
			Kim Mott		- yes
			Howie Weiss		- yes

MS. BERGER:		Thank you very much, enjoy your summer.

DEVELOPMENT MATTERS

APPLICATION #PB 14-05 – SEAN & SHARON DALTON

MR. WEISS:		Okay let’s move into our first of three developmental matters. The first one on the agenda tonight is PB 14-05 Sean & Sharon Dalton requesting a variance for an accessory structure located at Block 7501, Lot 5 which is 70 Kevin Drive.  I see we have Mr. Severud?

MR. SEVERUD:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		It’s nice to see you.

MR. SEVERUD:		Nice to see you.

MR. WEISS:		Mr. Dalton welcome.

MR. DALTON:		Hello.

MR. WEISS:		I guess what we can do is before we start we swear you in.  Is Mr. Dalton your only witness?

MR. SEVERUD:		Yes.

(SEAN DALTON SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MS. COFONI:		If you could state your full name spelling your last name and giving your address for the record please.

MR. DALTON:		Sean Edward Dalton (D-A-L-T-O-N) 70 Kevin Drive, Flanders, New Jersey 07836.

MR. WEISS:		Okay so why don’t you take us through the application I know we have copies of it it seems to be pretty straight forward so why don’t you tell us what the situation is and we’ll take it from there.

MR. SEVERUD:		The Dalton’s purchased this property last year and unfortunately we wouldn’t be here if the builder had put the house in the middle of the property.  Unfortunately it’s shifted a bit left and because of that which is the side that the driveway is on the distance between the corner of the house and the property line is 44.02 feet.  Now they plan on putting up a shed which is 14 by 24 feet and its 16 feet 8 inches tall and there are pictures of the proposed shed in the application.  The guidelines are that he has to put the shed 1-1/2 times the height from the side yard which is 25 foot, and when you put the shed 25 foot plus the 14 foot width of the shed that’s 39 feet that leaves only 5 feet plus or minus to the edge of the house.  There’s also a requirement that it be 15 feet from the corner of the house.  Now having been . . . Mr. Dalton came to town earlier while he was planning this and he was informed that it’s not just the corner of the house but it’s also the corner of the deck.  And because the deck is in the backyard and they actually did him a favor and showed him where that circle of 15 feet is around it and so that would then push . . . without this variance he would then have to put the shed 30 odd feet back further and then he runs into a problem with the septic lines that go to the septic system which is in the backyard are underneath it and obviously you can’t put anything on top of that.  So then he may have to actually put the shed approximately 100 to 125 feet back further and since it’s going to also potentially be a garage there may be required impervious coverage to get to it.  The shed that he plans on constructing is going to match the color, the doors the garage doors will all match the house and the property is surrounded by, and there are pictures of this in the application, 25 foot tall Cypress trees.  Literally there’s a picture of it with an extension latter so the trees are more than 8 feet taller than this shed so none of the side neighbors will be able to see it.  The only people that will be able to see it is if you go by on the street and there will be a shed next to the garage at the end of the driveway.  So what we’re seeking a variance for is the 15 foot distance from the house for the placement of the shed.  

MR. WEISS:		Okay so obviously we need to go through the various proofs obviously we’re looking at positive criteria so just to review you talked about kind of a unique piece of property where the home is not in the center but the . . . .

MR. SEVERUD:		I’m not saying it’s unique but it creates a unique situation that if it had been shifted 15 feet to the right we wouldn’t be sitting here tonight.

MR. WEISS:		Okay so there’s a situation that’s a little unique.  What is the slope on your yard is it flat?

MR. SEVERUD:		It slopes from rear towards the front, not a steep slope but it probably drops about 3 feet from the back yard to the house and then further to the street.  And there’s a map in the application of the water that was the way the water flows across the property as constructed by the original builder.  It really comes from back left which the backyard backs up against the school, flows down  along the left side cuts across behind the house and then comes out on the, if you were facing it from the street, on the right side of the house.  

MR. WEISS:		Does anybody else have any other questions for the applicant?  I was just consulting with our attorney I was just wondering if the questions we’re asking perhaps Mr. Dalton should answer so I don’t really have a lot of questions obviously the Board doesn’t either.  I just want to make sure we have the right criteria on the record that we make the proofs.  Mr. Dalton I’m going to ask you some simple questions, if we were to grant this variance would you say that the location of this new shed, garage would negatively impact your neighbors?  Would it have a detriment to your neighbors?

MR. DALTON:		I wouldn’t think so I mean it’s going to like flow with the house, I wouldn’t think so we’re going to side it the same color, the same roof, the same type of garage door that the existing garage doors have.  I think it would look quite nice actually.

MR. WEISS:		Are there other similar sheds in the neighborhood?

MR. DALTON:		You know I don’t really go around deep into the neighborhood I haven’t really been looking quite frankly.  

MR. SEVERUD:		He mentioned to me other sheds yesterday when we spoke.

MR. DALTON:		Well I mean I think on the one . . .

MR. SEVERUD:		Not necessarily the same size but other sheds in the neighborhood.

MR. DALTON:		Yeah I think there are other sheds I mean it seems like there’s a shed in every yard.

MR. SEVERUD:		And right across the street is a building that’s very similar to it owned by the town.  I believe it’s a water pump of some sort but it is right across the street.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Mr. Chairman I drove through the neighborhood there are other sheds in the neighborhood, quite a few.  

MR. WEISS:		Perfect.  Okay Tiena let’s go back by you, just based on the requirements that we need here are you satisfied that the applicant has stated enough testimony for positive criteria as well as the negative criteria?

MS. COFONI:		I am.

MR. WEISS:		Okay anybody have any other questions?  I have one Sean I look at the last two pictures in the packet and I kind of smiled because the very last picture reminded me of the original barn and I kind of laughed because I’m wondering if you were going to have that style or the photograph right before which is a much smaller . . . obviously it doesn’t matter it’s your preference but I just maybe for conversation I just thought that was . . . I think you see the similarity right?

MR. DALTON:		If anything I’m trying to not make it look like a barn.  It’s very emotional for me you know what we did with the other sale.  We’re going with the other shape because it just simply leaves more room for storage.  We’re trying to make it look more like it’s part of the house I really don’t want it to look like a barn in any way, shape or form it’s going to have different doors that some of these pictures show.  They’re going to have more like a house door on it and it’s going to have shutters and it’s not going to have like a loft type of thing up in the gable.

MR. WEISS:		So then I wasn’t crazy when I looked at that picture and said boy I’m wondering if he’s trying to recreate . . . which wouldn’t be a bad thing I mean there’s a lot of positive memories with that old barn.

MR. DALTON:		Yeah and if anything I’m trying to go the other way and not because it’s very emotional and I don’t really want it . . . I haven’t been on Flanders-Bartley Road since October.

MR. WEISS:		It doesn’t look any different Sean it looks exactly like it . . . .

MR. DALTON:		Eventually I’ll get down there and you know I’ll be okay with it but right now I’m now I’m just you know . .  

MR. WEISS:		Perfect I don’t have any other questions; I see none from the Planning Board.  Let me open it to the public if anybody has any questions for Mr. Dalton for the testimony that he delivered this evening now is a good time.  And I see none so let me close it to the public.  Any final comments from the Planning Board?  Tiena before I ask for an approval do you have any conditions?

MS. COFONI:		Just the general conditions that we would impose I don’t have any specifics.  The general conditions including the one year expiration.

MR. WEISS:		Fair enough Catherine did you have any issues coming out of your office?

MS. NATAFALUSY:	No just that they should get a zoning permit just to make sure we have that on the record.

MR. WEISS:		And of course you know you can apply for that zoning permit in a month after the resolution is drafted.

MR. DALTON:		Okay.

MR. WEISS:		That being said would anybody like to entertain a motion?

MR. RUSSELL:		I’ll move that PB 14-05 be approved.

MR. MANIA:		Second.

MR. WEISS:		Comments?  Seeing none Catherine roll call.

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Joe Fleischner		- yes
			Judy Johnson		- yes
			David Koptyra		- yes
			John Mania		- yes
			Nelson Russell		- yes
			Scott Van Ness		- yes
			Kim Mott		- yes
			Howie Weiss		- yes

MR. WEISS:		Sean good luck.

MR. DALTON:		Thank you very much.

APPLICATION #PB 13-29(A) – FRATELLI BERETTA USA INC. – (BLOCK 102, LOT 4 CON4)

MR. WEISS:		Okay let’s move on with our agenda this evening we move on to PB 13-29(A) Catherine I think that’s an amended version?

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Yes that’s how we decided to do it.

MR. WEISS:		Okay Fratelli Beretta USA Inc. coming in for an amended site plan at Block 102, Lot 4 Con4 at 750 Clark Drive.  Tonight we have Mr. Monaghan?

MR. MONAGHAN:	That’s correct.

MR. WEISS:		Welcome and I take it you brought Mr. Ploussas with you.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		I know this is not that old I think the details should be fresh in most of our minds but  let’s not make any assumptions so I’ll turn it over to you Mr. Monaghan to explain to us why you’re here and what the story is.

MR. MONAGHAN:	Thank you Mr. Chairman.  I represent Fratelli Beretta USA Inc we previously obtained approved from the Board for an amended and preliminary and final site plan on January 16th of this year.  There were some variances associated with that approval and notice of the approval was published on January 21, 2014.  Since that time we’ve procured the construction permits, the treatment works approval, and have commenced construction on the property.  Conditions encountered in the field in the course of construction required some deviations from the approved site plan.  All of those deviations were discussed with the Township Engineer as they were encountered and many of them were approved as field changes there were eight in all.  However, one of the changes affects the grading of the slope in the rear of the property and that grading was the subject of one of the variances that was granted in connection with our earlier application.  The Township Engineer suggested we come to the Board and request an amended approval so that this would all be done on the record.  We gave public notice and notice to the property owners within 200 feet of this hearing just to be safe and our engineer Mr. Ploussas prepared a new critical areas map which was sheet 12 of 20 of the site plan and that was submitted to the Board prior to our appearance here tonight on June 2, 2014.  Mr. Ploussas is prepared to go over the changes to the site plan and answer any questions in connection with our request for an approval of an amended site plan.  

MR. WEISS:		Let’s do this, let’s swear him in.

(GREGORY PLOUSSAS SWORN IN FOR THE FOR THE RECORD)

MS. COFONI:		If you could state your full name spelling your last name and giving your business address for the record please.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Gregory Ploussas (P-L-O-U-S-S-A-S) 100 Matawan Road in Matawan, New Jersey.

MS. COFONI:		Thank you.

MR. MONAGHAN:	Mr. Ploussas had prepared a couple of hand outs to make it easier for the Board to follow along on his testimony.

MR. WEISS:		And I do believe that the majority of the Planning Board has heard Mr. Ploussas testify before.  I kind of imagine we can accept Mr. Ploussas as an engineer this evening.  

MR. PLOUSSAS:		The basic reason we are before the Board this evening is because we’ve increased the disturbance in the rear of the building or to the west side of the property of the critical areas.  

MS. COFONI:		Mr. Ploussas can we go ahead and mark this exhibit A-1?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Sure.

MS. COFONI:		Since I think you’re going to be referring to this while you speak.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Right.

MS. COFONI:		And it’s a critical areas plan?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Yes there’s actually two others the site plans are attached to it, do you want to make it one exhibit?  

MS. COFONI:		No we’ll do them separately.  Critical areas plan with a last date of May 7, 2014.  Then we’ll do exhibit A-2 will be the amended preliminary and final site plan.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Sheet 5.  

MS. COFONI:		Oh okay sheet 5 and that date is also May 7, 2014.  And then the last one will be A-3.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Which again is the amended preliminary and final site plan sheet 4 the same revision date.

MS. COFONI:		Okay great thank you.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Okay.  The reason I’m starting with the critical areas mapping is because I think it’s the reason we’re here before the Board today because many of the other changes have been reviewed by the Township Engineer.  On the exhibit that I’ve given out the small copy of the critical areas plan I have highlighted two lines.  Okay the first line is the previously approved limit of disturbance and then next to that or to the left of that or to the west of it is the current limit of disturbance that we’re seeking to get approval for from the Planning Board this evening.  As far as the numbers go the disturbances are being increased on the moderate slopes previously we had 5,892 square feet, we are now proposing 11,575 square feet.  Although that sounds like a large increase, double it’s only 1.4 percent of the moderate slopes on the site.  It’s very insignificant.

MR. WEISS:		What was the actual square footage increase do you have that?  

MR. PLOUSSAS:		We went from 5892 to 11,575 on moderate slopes.  On the critical slopes we’re going from 3,825 to 9,308 square feet.  Again although it sounds like a large increase the percentage is going from .7 percent to 1.1 percent.  The critical areas ordinance I think it’s Section 40 allows you to disturb up to 50 percent of the moderate slopes so we’re well below that, and critical slopes there is no numerical number but it just restricts you that you can’t do certain things on critical slopes.  You can’t put a building on it, you can’t put a septic system on there, you can’t put a well on there.  We’re not putting any of those on there the only thing we are doing is relocating the driveway that goes up to the water tank to come underneath the Public Service power line easement.  And the reason for the increase in the critical areas is the pretreatment building size has increased significantly, and in the course of doing test pits out there the contractors found rock, not a surprise.  But more rock than anticipated and a little bit higher.  So we’re trying to minimize the blasting and the earth work out there.    So since the pretreatment building got so large and in order to still try and reduce the effects on the critical slopes we have relocated the trash enclosure area which was behind the building to the side of the building which I’ll show you on the next exhibit.  That’s the story as far as the critical areas go.  If we turn the page to I guess exhibit A-2 over on the left side we should be able to see the relocated trash area which is highlighted, and an additional item has been added is there has been a forklift ramp that has come out of the southerly door of the building next to the loading dock and goes down to the trash area so that they can take the trash down there in their forklift.  So the trash/recycling area has been relocated to the south side of the building.  In addition as our attorney said there have been several other minor changes made and I’ll just go through them quickly, the building footprints have been adjusted slightly to match the finished architectural and I’m talking within inches, the grading at the rear of the building again has been raised wherever possible to minimize the blasting.  The trash area has been relocated , the retaining walls at the rear of the building have now been adjusted to match the new grading but you may recall the Board granted us a design waiver for the height of the walls to the original hearing and we did not exceed that waiver which was about 11 feet.  We also raised the finished floor elevation of the building by 6 inches to better balance the earthwork so we wouldn’t have to truck any material off of the site.  And on page exhibit A-3 or page 4 which is the last page originally the water meter vaults were coming in the front of the building, they’ve been relocated to the side of the building to come in on the side where the loading docks are.

MR. WEISS:		Greg I’m sorry say that again what’s coming in from the front?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		The water meter vaults.  New Jersey American Water requires meter vaults prior to the service entering the building.  Originally we had them in the front but they’ve been relocated to the south side of the building near the loading dock area.

MR. WEISS:		What is a water meter vault?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		It’s a pit probably 8 by 8 where the water main goes through it and there’s a meter in it, the meter and they come and read the meter.  Yeah because now the days you have safety regulations about people entering the vault and it’s a lot of money for not much what you get out of it.  And on the north side of the building at the first door on the north side there’s been a small concrete slab added with a fence for some outdoor storage of some of their materials.  That’s the extent of the changes.  Not really material other than I guess the critical areas.

MR. WEISS:		Where is that new outdoor area?  I’m looking at A-2 Greg.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Page 4 right?

MR. WEISS:		Well its page 4.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Okay do you see where it says second floor mezzanine?

MR. WEISS:		Yes.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Okay right to the right of that there’s a little concrete area okay with a fence around it.  

MR. WEISS:		What are they going to store outside?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		I’m not sure I have to ask the applicant.

MR. WEISS:		Tiena you had a question?

MS. COFONI:		Yes with regard to the steep slope disturbance I believe my quick reading of the previous resolution, you didn’t need variance approval for that disturbance it was actually just the resulting retaining wall that you needed variance approval for.  And you continue not to need variance or waivers from the steep slopes with this is that correct?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Yeah that’s correct the only reason we’re here is because the resolution was very specific as to the disturbance.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	The square footage.

MS. COFONI:		The square footage.  And the additional changes I believe that are on A-2 those were approved as field changes correct?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Yes.

MS. COFONI:		Okay so the approval that we’re talking about tonight is specific to the disturbance to the critical slopes just so the Board is aware.

MR. WEISS:		Gene?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Just a couple of things.  Greg regarding the relocation of the treatment plant is that still going to be required or you don’t know yet?  You didn’t say.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		I’m sorry?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	The treatment plant is that still going to be . . .

MR. PLOUSSAS:		I’ve had a conversation with Lee Purcell’s office and they’re not sure yet they really can’t tell until the building is up and operating and they start testing the effluent.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Because it’s just a shame because if you don’t need the treatment plant, you don’t need all of the grading that you’ve been doing out there right now.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		That’s true but . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	And the retaining walls that are going to be going up if there’s no plant there was really no need for that.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		I can only tell you that I get the feeling from the owner that he feels eventually it’s going to be required.  Maybe not right away and so he wants to plan for it you know because once the building is up and they’re operating you can’t go back there and start blasting and putting in walls.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	And the only other thing I had, a memo I sent to the Board regarding my concern with the location of the access road going up towards the tank, did you get to talk to New Jersey American Water regarding that?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		We have sent it to New Jersey American Water they’re aware of it but they have not responded yet.  And there’s been several attempts to follow up on that yes.

MR. WEISS:		Chuck from a zoning perspective do we have any restrictions as to what can be stored outdoors?

MR. MCGROARTY:	Well in the General Industrial zone which is synonymous really with the Foreign Trade Zone there are no restrictions, the same as the permitted uses and in fact this is FTZ-2 I believe.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Yes that’s correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Where the regulations are even more lenient as it were so the short answer is no.

MR. WEISS:		It’s a fairly small area right Greg?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Yes, yeah.

MR. WEISS:		I’m just curious why they decided to add it did they need something in particular?

MR. PLOUSSAS:		My feeling is its some materials that they need for their manufacturing process that don’t have to be stored in the building.

MR. WEISS:		I mean it doesn’t seem like there would be a lot of damage and Chuck had said there was no restrictions.

MR. MCGROARTY:	And I don’t think you’ll even see it from Clark Drive.

MR. WEISS:		No I can’t imagine you would see it either I’m just concerned why they’re adding it that’s something to monitor.  Do we have any other questions from the Planning Board?  Gene?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	I’m fine.

MR. WEISS:		Chuck did you have anything to add?

MR. MCGROARTY:	No except I would say though maybe just as a condition for any . . . and you made me think of this Mr. Chairman that just that the Fire Marshall has advised that whatever the materials are that are outside and assuming they’re not going to be hazardous or flammable.

MR. WEISS:		Okay. 

MR. MCGROARTY:	It can’t hurt to add that condition I think.

MR. WEISS:		You don’t have a problem with that Mr. Monaghan do you?

MR. MONAGHAN:	I do not.

MR. WEISS:		Thank you Chuck.  Anything else?  Catherine did you have any issues from your office?

MS. NATAFALUSY:	No.

MR. WEISS:		Tiena?

MS. COFONI:		Nothing.

MR. WEISS:		Okay well at this point let me open it to the public, if anybody from the public has any questions for Mr. Ploussas based on the testimony delivered tonight?  I see none from the public so I’ll close it to the public.  Anything else from the Planning Board?  So before I ask for a motion perhaps Ms. Tiena Cofoni can you please explain to us what conditions if any to be associated with this variance.

MS. COFONI:		Yes I actually just have two along with the typical conditions, one would be approval from New Jersey American Water regarding the location of the water tank access road and the second would be the one that Chuck just suggested and that is the applicant shall advise the Mt. Olive Fire Marshall regarding materials to be stored outside.

MR. WEISS:		Okay anybody want to add to that?  I didn’t think so.  If someone on the Planning Board would like to make a motion?

MR. MANIA:		Mr. Chairman I move for PB 13-29(A) Fratelli Berretta amended site plan.

MR. WEISS:		Thank you Mr. Mania.  

MR. RUSSELL:		Second.

MR. WEISS:		Nelson thank you very much for a second.  Any conversation?  Seeing none, Catherine roll call.

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Joe Fleischner		- yes
			Judy Johnson		- yes
			David Koptyra		- yes
			John Mania		- yes
			Nelson Russell		- yes
			Scott Van Ness		- yes
			Kim Mott		- yes
			Howie Weiss		- yes

MR. WEISS:		Thank you.  Obviously Mr. Monaghan you know the resolution will be drafted next month.

MR. MONAGHEN:	Yes thank you very much.

MR. PLOUSSAS:		Thank you have a good summer.

(TEN MINUTE BREAK TAKEN)

APPLICATION #PB 14-06 – TOLL NJ XII LP – BLOCK 6000, LOTS 5 & 6

MR. WEISS:		Okay the meeting is back in session.  Our final developmental matter this evening is PB 14-06 Toll NJ XII LP Regency at Flanders amended preliminary and final site plan with variances for Block 6000, Lots 5 & 6 located on Pleasant Hill Road.  Tonight we have Mr. Lavery representing the applicant and it’s all yours Michael.

MR. LAVERY:		Thank you Mr. Chairman good evening ladies and gentlemen of the Board Michael B. Lavery from the firm of Courter, Kobert and Cohen as the Chairman pointed out representing Toll Brothers.  I have with me tonight three witnesses I have Richard Maser to my left he’s our engineer who will be testifying this evening, we also have Barbara Schoor from Community Investment Strategies who will be testifying about the COAH implications of what we’re asking the Board to grant tonight and then I also have Darlene J. Green from Maser Consulting who is a professional planner who is going to testify as to the two variances that we require this evening.  The Board has copies of the plans I think the two major issues are the affordable housing units and the request by us to designate them all moderate as opposed to low and moderate.  And then of course the phasing of those, as the Board may recall the first phase required 21 COAH units to be installed in Phase I, 18 in Phase 2 and then another 18 in Phase 3 and the testimony tonight will be what we’d like to do is just complete all of them in Phase 2.  And what we’ll do is we’ll have all of the COAH units built by the time 50 percent of the market units are built.  And really the testimony it makes sense because from a Land Use perspective we’d like to just have all those buildings built at once so there’s less inconvenience for the residents that might buy in the earlier phase and we think it will make sense and I think the testimony will reflect that.  And like I said we have some extensive testimony on the COAH aspect of this because I believe that gets a little confusing sometimes.  So without any further ado I don’t know if you’d like to swear all three witnesses in at once or just have Mr. Maser sworn.

MR. WEISS:		This is the toughest decision I’m asked tonight but my decision Michael is going to be all at once.

MR. LAVERY:		Okay so we have Mr. Maser, we have Ms. Schoor and Ms. Green.

(RICHARD MASER, DARLENE GREEN & BARBARA SCHOOR SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MS. COFONI:		Whoever is going to be testifying first.

MR. LAVERY:		Mr. Maser.

MS. COFONI:		Mr. Maser if you could just state your full name spelling your last name and giving your business address for the record.

MR. MASER:		Richard Maser (M-A-S-E-R) I’m a licensed professional engineer and professional planner.  I’m the present CO of Maser Consulting based out of Red Bank, New Jersey.

MS. COFONI:		Thank you.

MR. WEISS:		Mr. Maser you’ve appeared in front of this Planning Board many times.

MR. MASER:		Yes I’d like to clarify tonight I’m appearing as a site engineer, previously when I was talking I was representing the property owner.  

MR. WEISS:		Does anybody have any issues with Mr. Maser testifying as an expert engineer?  Thank you Mr. Maser.

MR. LAVERY:		All right Mr. Maser if you could just give the Board a brief overview of the changes, again this is amended site plan and amended subdivision so if you could just give an overview of what we’re looking to do with the amendments.

MR. MASER:		Sure there’s been several minor changes as it relates to the engineering aspect of the project.  As our attorney has indicated the two core issues real deal with COAH.  But I would like to advise the Board on what we did from an engineering standpoint.  In order to make the project more balanced in terms of earth work and not have fill be taken off of the site which would impact the community having trucks go through the community, we’ve regraded the site, a portion of the site by raising some of the grades.  While raising the grades we’re also able to do some drainage improvements that will be beneficial for the long term maintenance of the drainage facilities at the site.  So approximately half of the site was regraded, the layout itself all of the roads and where the utilities are located where the drainage features are located are all the same none of that has been changed.  So from the general appearance sake it’s very minor in nature and does not affect the layout at all.  The second aspect was the architectural plans for the clubhouse have been revised.  I’m happy to say that the clubhouse actually has been enlarged from what was originally approved so it’s a bigger facility.  Also there’s been another amenity added to the recreation facilities that’s pickle ball courts, I don’t know if you’re familiar with it that’s in all of the previous recreation facilities that we showed during the original site plan approval are still there and this additional facility has been added.  It’s something that more and more communities are adding these days.  In addition the entrance signs both for the market rate units as well as the affordable units have been changed slightly they are in conformance with your ordinance and no waivers are sought for that change.  

MR. WEISS:		Rich can you stop for a second?

MR. MASER:		Sure.

MR. WEISS:		You’re adding an amenity could you show us where that’s going?

MR. MASER:		Sure.  

MR. WEISS:		And I guess your referring to what we’ll call A-1.

MR. MASER:		Well I have a blow up that shows it a little bit better if you want me to use that as A-1.

MR. WEISS:		Okay that’s fine whichever one you’re referring to let’s call that A-1.

MR. MASER:		What I’m referring to is sheet 1 of 2 it’s actually the title is labeled temporary construction trailer and model area site plan but it actually includes a blow up of the clubhouse area.  As I mentioned the clubhouse is slightly larger it would still have Bocchi ball courts, tennis courts and an in-ground pool which are part of the originally amenity package.  But at this location we’ve added two pickle ball courts right to the right of the clubhouse.

MR. WEISS:		Okay, what was there previously?  Was it just open space?

MR. MASER:		It was open space so we didn’t take any amenities away we just added.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Not to sound like I don’t know what I’m talking about but I don’t, what the hell is pickle ball?

MR. MASER:		I’ve never actually seen it but I have a description for you.  I know we’ve been adding it to all of our adult communities lately.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	I know Kosher pickles but I don’t know pickle ball courts.  

MR. MASER:		It’s a court sport played on a badminton sized court and slightly modified tennis nets with a paddle and a plastic ball.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Oh so it’s like tennis for old people.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Exactly.

MR. MASER:		As you can see the size is much smaller than a tennis court.

MR. WEISS:		So that right there that you’re referring to as C-1 is that sheet 6 the same 6 as I’m looking at?

MR. MASER:		I’d have to confirm that.

MR. WEISS:		No I don’t think it’s the same actually.  But that’s okay it’s not it’s clearly not.

MR. MASER:		This is to a different scale.

MR. WEISS:		Yeah no that’s fine.

MR. MASER:		The layout is the same on the smaller site plan scale this is just a blow up of that.

MR. WEISS:		We have it here.

MS. COFONI:		Can you just tell me the date on A-1 please?

MR. MASER:		It’s actually only dated as 2014.  

MS. COFONI:		Okay that’s fine thank you.

MR. WEISS:		So go ahead I’m sorry.

MR. MASER:		Well the other aspect of this application is to provide temporary construction trailers for sales and a model area.  That would be as you come into the site it would be to the left, that’s also shown on the submitted plans.  As mentioned there’s two variances that we are requesting that will have extensive testimony on by the end user that will be managing this affordable housing, and our planner to testify about the variances.  In addition to that we did address comments from your planner, engineer and your police department as part of these revisions and we’re in agreement with all of those technical comments that they requested of us.  

MR. WEISS:		The trailer that you’re putting in do you plan on having it moved throughout the construction process?

MR. MASER:		No it’s been positioned such that it wouldn’t have to be.

MR. WEISS:		Okay they’re obviously there’s some detention basins and other improvements that are going to happen.

MR. MASER:		Yeah it’s situated in a later phase so we’ll have the same thing with the model homes area.  

MR. WEISS:		Okay.  Gene did you want to go over your report?

MR. BUCYZNSKI:	Yeah really there isn’t much in there other than the one issue pertaining to the traffic intersection and the sewer treatment plant modifications.  The original application that they submitted to the Board has to have the traffic light in Phase I and move the treatment plant modifications from Phase I to Phase III I believe.  But since then we received a letter after I wrote a report, they received a letter they agreed to do both improvements in Phase I.  Is that correct?

MR. LAVERY:		That’s correct yes.  So we’ll do the upgrades to Clover Hill and then the traffic light.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Any scheduling when it would start in Phase I?  Or I guess it’s going to be completed by the end of Phase I?

MR. MASER:		That’s the agreement it would be completed by the end of Phase I.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Okay.

MR. MASER:		Both improvements.

MR. BUCYNSKI:		Thank you.

MR. WEISS:		Is now a good time to talk about this traffic light?

MR. MASER:		Yeah that would be my area of expertise.

MR. WEISS:		I know that we’ve had some conversation I think when we last left at our last hearing I think the Planning Board requested more of residential type traffic light and at the time the answer was no?  I think since then, and tell me if I’m wrong, I’ve heard that the applicant is willing to change the style of that traffic light?

MR. MASER:		That is correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Mr. Chairman if I may, the answer wasn’t really no the answer was if they disagreed they were supposed to work it out with Gene and myself if we couldn’t reach an agreement we’d have to come back.

MR. LAVERY:		Had to come back yeah and that is specifically in the early resolution of approval so if we can’t come to an agreement with the planner and the engineer we have to come back here on the design.  Because it was clear in the resolution that the Board has some concerns about what that was going to look like.

MR. WEISS:		 So how did we leave it, stay the way it is?

MR. LAVERY:		I think it stays the way it is.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Well I think the way it stays is the recommendation should apply unless they meet and convince us otherwise or we can’t agree and then they come back.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Right.

MR. WEISS:		Okay that’s just slightly technically different.  Obviously there was . . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:	Well they didn’t say no I mean I think the way it is now that I think the answer is they will do it.

MR. WEISS:		Unless they say yes (inaudible) and maybe now we’re hearing them say yes but let’s go back to that, let’s leave it the way it is.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Yeah I think the way it is is that the presumption is it will be designed the way we suggested unless we meet and they can persuade us otherwise which is unlikely and then it would come back here.

MR. MASER:		Just to further clarify it we agreed to do it there’s variations in the type.  You can make it the black color, you can make it ornate but there is various price points for different ones.  I’m sure we’d be able to come to an agreement.

MR. WEISS:		I think the issue with the Planning Board is we just don’t want (inaudible).

MR. MASER:		Which we’ve agreed to.

MR. WEISS:		Fair enough we can leave it that way.  So Gene was there anything else in your report?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	I’m going through it real quick.  No just there’s certain conditions under my report on page 2 technical items.  Just items in my last review report that they can’t really do until we move further ahead on the project relative to posting the bonds, installation of concrete monuments, deed descriptions and all of that.  So they would just be continued as conditions in the approval.

MR. MASER:		Which (inaudible) this.

MR. WEISS:		Okay perfect.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	And I think everything else is just statements more than anything.  That’s it.  In the revised plans they submitted they meet all of the other comments (inaudible) report.

MR. WEISS:		So the changes are rather minor as you laid them out.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Yes.

MR. WEISS:		Okay anybody from the Planning Board have any questions for Mr. Maser?  Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:		The grading changes now or another witness?

MR. MASER:		No that would be myself.

MR. VAN NESS:		What is the height difference between the highest point that your changing it to?

MR. MASER:		If you averaged it over the entire site it would be approximately 1 foot.  But there’s only about half the site has changed so the sections that changed are probably averaging close to 2 feet.

MR. VAN NESS:		What’s the highest point?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Between maybe 2-1/2 feet the highest.

MR. VAN NESS:		Okay so it’s . . . I mean I just want to basically get out there that we’re not going to see any real change in the . . . 

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	No.

MR. MASER:		No it would not be at all you know visual.  

MR. VAN NESS:		Thank you.

MR. WEISS:		Anybody else from the Planning Board?  At this point let me open it to the public, if anybody from the public has any questions of Mr. Maser based on the testimony he just delivered?  And I’m seeing none so let me close it to the public and turn it back over to you Michael.

MR. LAVERY:		Thank you Mr. Chairman next I’d like to call Barbara Schoor.

MS. SCHOOR:		Good evening ladies and gentlemen.

MR. WEISS:		Maybe I think what we should do because we’re going to get into some complicated concepts I believe, maybe you can explain what your position is Ms. Schoor.

MS. COFONI:		If I may if you could just . . . you were previously sworn and if you could just state your full name spelling your last name and giving your business address for the record please.

MS. SCHOOR:		Certainly my name is Barbara K. Schoor (S-C-H-O-O-R) I’m Vice President of Community Investment Strategies we’re located at 1970 Brunswick Avenue in Lawrenceville, NJ.

MS. COFONI:		Thank you.

MS. SCHOOR:		So my company Community Investment Strategies is an affordable housing developer, owner and operator.  We’re appearing before you tonight as the contract purchaser of the affordable housing section of The Regency at Flanders Development.  What we do is build affordable housing we work in various capacities either doing standalone 100 percent affordable housing communities or we work in connection with a market rate builder assisting them in fulfilling their affordable housing obligation.  My company does rental housing and it’s usually when we’re combining the multi-family rental product with a single-family product they need to bring somebody whose expertise is the affordable housing.  That’s all our company does, we have about 3,500 units this year we’re celebrating our 20th year in business.  I’ve been with the company for almost 14 years.  We build currently only in New Jersey and we take a lot of pride in the communities that we build.  Community Investment Strategies is really a statement towards not only the community that we’re developing but the relationship that we like to build with the community that we’re within.

MR. WEISS:		So you’re here to totally explain his COAH concept.

MS. SCHOOR:		Well I don’t know if there’s anyone in the world that can totally explain the COAH concept but I can tell you what we’re trying to do here tonight.  

MR. WEISS:		So we’re ready to hear what you have to tell us about this concept.

MR. LAVERY:		All right well Ms. Schoor let’s start out with as you know we were required in an earlier approval to provide 57 units of low and moderate income housing correct?

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s right.

MR. LAVERY:		All right and the proposal is to create 57 units of moderate housing as oppose to a mix of low and moderate income housing correct?

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s right.

MR. LAVERY:		And how are we permitted to do that?

MS. SCHOOR:		So the type of financing that we use to raise the money to build the affordable housing is a Federal program called the Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program. It was developed in the late 1980’s as a way to get government out of low income housing incentive via private investment.  So when we talk about tax credit housing I’m not getting a tax credit I’m selling a tax credit to raise the money to build the project.  Now I don’t raise enough money to build the project I’m doing it jointly with the market rate developer.  But that program is an exception that financing program when you use that in the context of developing affordable housing New Jersey it’s an exception to the standard 50 percent low and 50 percent mod. split.  And I think the reason that it is an exception is because this housing is developed all across the country, this program is available in all of the States and territories of the country.  And it’s found that these properties best operate and are most feasible over the long term the 30 year affordability control period if they’re set with this higher rent level.  

MR. LAVERY:		Okay so by using the Federal Tax Credit and being eligible for that program that’s what permits us to build all moderate housing as oppose to the mix of low and moderate that would be required in the absence of that finding.

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s correct yes.

MR. LAVERY:		All right did I confuse everybody enough on that?  

MR. WEISS:		How does that affect the township?

MS. SCHOOR:		It doesn’t affect the township it shouldn’t affect the township.  The way that the State looks at your obligation and it’s anybody’s guess what obligations are going forward, but the way that the State has historically looked at your obligation is say you had an obligation of 500 units and I was coming into your town and building 100 units using the Tax Credit Program they would say okay you get credit for 100 units and now let’s split the 400 units.  And that’s the way that they have historically always looked at it is right off the top.  The same way if you had 100 percent low property which you may have in town they don’t say well where we making up the mod. units they take that property right off of the top.  So it’s not something that you have to make up in a different community the law permits that tax credit properties are an exception to that split.

MR. WEISS:		Tiena are you prepared to help with that law end of it?

MS. COFONI:	`	Well I have confirmed with what she said and I think what I spoke to Mike about earlier today was that we should . . . that the applicant will be willing to obtain confirmation of that portion of it from COAH.  And the portion I’m talking about which will be the most concern for the municipality is that we won’t have to make up the low income in another area.  And I think the proposal was that they would be willing to obtain that by the end of the year.  So it gives them six months to obtain that letter and if they are unable to obtain that letter then they’ll go back to the 50/50 split.

MR. LAVERY:		That’s correct Mr. Chairman.  So we’ll by January 1 of 2015 or December 31 of this year we’ll have confirmation from COAH that that is in fact correct.  Because I understand the town’s concern you don’t want to approve that and then find out you’re not getting credit for the full 57.

MS. COFONI:		The law is clear there’s no question that there’s no question that there’s this exception with regard to the 50/50 split.  What’s a little less clear or at least I haven’t been able to find anything specific in the law on is that whole we won’t have to make up the low income and so therefore obtaining that letter from COAH will give the town the comfort that they need with regard to that aspect of it.

MR. WEISS:		Okay and then Chuck obviously your prepared to help us explain this any further too.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Yeah I can help you and I suggest the same thing in my report.

MR. WEISS:		Okay.

MS. COFONI:		And that’s why Mike actually suggested this as a result of Chuck’s report.

MR. LAVERY:		That’s correct.

MR. WEISS:		Okay.

MR. LAVERY:		All right and Ms. Schoor there was a question in the planner’s report about the time period for this?

MS. SCHOOR:		Yeah the proposal or the request that is being made as part of this application is that we build 100 percent of the affordable housing when you reach the 50 percent of the market rate housing point.  And the reason that we ask for that relief and we’ve received it many times before it’s a relief that COAH has granted before is we don’t finance these building as part of the program that I just briefly described.  We don’t finance these buildings as separate projects we finance them all together.  And in order to finance them altogether we need to do them, we need to construct them all at once.  And it’s a little bit of a relief to be able to construct them all at once just a little bit later.  But you’re getting 100 percent of the units much earlier than you would have under the normal phasing scenario.  

MR. WEISS:		And again that trigger point is when 50 percent of this property is built?

MS. SCHOOR:		50 percent of the market rate units.

MR. WEISS:		50 percent of the market rate units are built, C.O.’s are issued, closed upon?

MS. SCHOOR:		C.O.’s.

MR. WEISS:		C.O.’s issued.

MR. MCGROARTY:	If I may I just want to clarify.  Are we agreeing is the proposal then that the 57 at this point moderate units will be constructed and available for occupancy at the 50 percent mark which is the 113.  Not that construction of those units will start.

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:	So the construction will start, and that’s what I was wondering, the construction then will start at some point it would seem in phase I of the market project.  

MS. SCHOOR:		Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Mr. Maser (inaudible) I just want to make sure.  So that would be at the 113 market CO the 57 units will be available for occupancy.

MS. SCHOOR:		Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Okay.

MS. COFONI:		Chuck what number unit was that I’m sorry?

MR. MCGROARTY:	113 market units.

MR. WEISS:		Just to be clear 113 then he gets a CO.

MR. LAVERY:		And again Ms. Schoor staying with Mr. McGroarty’s report you will be the administrative agent for the affordable units?

MS. SCHOOR:		Yes we would be the administrative agent, we are approved by the State to be the administrative agent.  The way that we would work with the Township’s overall administrative agent is we would provide information that they need to complete all of their reports.  

MR. MCGROARTY:	May I Mr. Chairman just on that?  We haven’t done this before, Mount Olive has not done this before there is an administrative agent for a different project but it was never formalized in any sense.  So the ordinance as I read it would require the Township to authorize you to do that and I can’t imagine the township would not.  I mean your reputation is well known and respected so but that’s a process that would be (inaudible).

MR. MASER:		Would that be part of the developer’s agreement?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	It could be.

MR. MCGROARTY:	It could be I suppose the question is the developer’s agreement . . . 

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	It could be a condition in the developer’s agreement.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Yeah and we’d have to work out the details of that because we do have an administrative agent and if you’re going to work with him or independent of him that would be clarified at that time.  

MS. SCHOOR:		Sure.

MR. WEISS:		Go ahead Joe.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Question, if all of the units will not be moderate income will the bedroom mix change?  Or will it be what originally was set?

MS. SCHOOR:		It will be what’s originally set.

MR. WEISS:		Nelson go ahead.

MR. RUSSELL:		For my own edification what’s the moderate income running for Morris County?

MS. SCHOOR:		The moderate income the 60 percent I can go by bedrooms between one and four bedrooms it ranges from 36,840 for one bedroom and 52,620 for a four person household.

MR. RUSSELL:		Okay.

MR. WEISS:		Tiena go ahead.

MS. COFONI:		The phasing having all of them constructed in Phase II you mentioned you’ve gotten that really from COAH so that’s something that you will need to go to COAH to to obtain approval for?

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s a motion that’s required at COAH yes.

MS. COFONI:		Okay.

MR. WEISS:		Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:		So you’re saying by changing to just 57 moderate income residences that so we’re eliminating 23, 24 low income potential residents right?  Let me just finish my thought, so what they’re saying is if we do the 57 we will then have to split the remainder of our COAH obligations.  Would that change our lower income COAH obligations?  

MR. MCGROARTY:	No it shouldn’t but we want confirmation from COAH to that affect.  I say it shouldn’t that has been as was described accurately that has been the procedure in the past with other municipalities that the low income obligation is not then shifted elsewhere in the municipality.  

MR. VAN NESS:		So it’s eliminated.

MR. MCGROARTY:	In that respect yes.

MR. VAN NESS:		So I guess my question is or my concern might be, and it’s a concern for me is so we’re eliminating the potential of low income families achieving homeownership.  

MS. SCHOOR:		Well these are rental apartments but . . .

MR. VAN NESS:		Okay from having a nice apartment.

MS. SCHOOR:		So maybe on the surface that is the way that it appears, there’s a very intricate process for qualifying households and you’re not necessarily eliminating those households, they’re not prohibited from renting the units.  The requirement is you can’t make more than these amounts that I stated there’s no bottom to it except that an applicant would need to show how they would afford.  The typical number that you work with is that they pay 30 percent of their household income but there are a number of exceptions on how to do that calculation.  One of them is to show a history of having supported their household at this rent level for some period.  So there are a myriad of ways that a family that’s making less than those amounts stated could qualify for the housing so they’re not prohibited.  

MR. VAN NESS:		And what is the low income range?

MS. SCHOOR:		The low income range goes from 39,700 to a single person household to 43,850 on a four person household.

MR. VAN NESS:		Didn’t you say moderate income was 36,840?

MS. SCHOOR:		36,840.

MR. VAN NESS:		So how is a moderate higher than the low income?

MS. SCHOOR:		I’m sorry 30,700 thank you for clarifying that for me.

MR. VAN NESS:		So the low income is 30,700 for . . .

MS. SCHOOR:		For a single person.

MR. VAN NESS:		Thank you.

MR. WEISS:		Any other questions?

MR. MCGROARTY:	I do Mr. Chairman.

MR. WEISS:		Chuck go ahead.

MR. MCGROARTY:	If I could just going through the report that you’ve requested the payment in lieu of taxes which of course this is not the Planning Board’s function.  Is that a requirement (inaudible) this federal tax credit?

MS. SCHOOR:		It’s not a requirement of the tax credit program it’s really something that goes into the feasibility and underwriting of the project.  

MR. MCGROARTY:	And that’s again that will be subject to the township Council whether they approve or not if . . . I guess what we’re getting at is if for whatever reason this federal . . . if you don’t secure the financing from that then this deviation from the phasing and the low mod as well.

MS. SCHOOR:		No I think the deviation from the phasing is still appropriate but from the phasing of delivering the units at 50 percent complete because that’s really a function of being able to finance the whole 57 units at one time regardless of what the source of that financing is.  But certainly the ability to avail ourselves of the waiver from that low/mod split would not be appropriate.

MR. MCGROARTY:	So the Board is clear about this then regardless of what happens with whether you’re successful or not with the federal tax program financing your asking for the phasing schedule be changed as you described tonight.

MS. SCHOOR:		Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:	But on the other hand if you’re not successful with the program you’ll return here or you’ll adhere to the low/mod split.

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s correct.

MR. LAVERY:		Correct.

MR. WEISS:		And the original phasing plan that we have already?

MS. SCHOOR:		No, no .  . .

MR. LAVERY:		We’d like to stay at the . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:	I mean for what it’s worth I mean it makes perfect sense to build three buildings at one time.

MR. WEISS:		I agree with that.

MR. MCGROARTY:	I just had a few others.

MR. WEISS:		Oh go right ahead.

MR. MCGROARTY:	And as was mentioned earlier you have agreed within a certain time frame to make the request that COAH confirm so that the town will be . . .

MS. SCHOOR:		Yes.

MR. LAVERY:		Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:	I missed the discussion on the phasing.  You did agree Ms. Schoor also that you will get either a waiver or whatever COAH is going to provide to acknowledge the phasing is changed.  

MS. SCHOOR:		Yeah that is in the COAH rules that requires a motion so it would either be through the motion that would have to be brought before COAH.  What we’ve done in other towns is the township actually has to make that application we can’t do that as a private citizen.  But we would work with the town and support that application.  

MR. MCGROARTY:	I think I would like to make that a condition of the approval that we talk about that.

MS. SCHOOR:		Sure.

MR. MCGROARTY:	That’s a burden that the town . . . 

MS. SCHOOR:		Yeah it would just be the town would have to make it in name.

MR. MCGROARTY:	And so appearing in front of COAH depending the motion and the whole thing is on the applicant and not on the town or it’s consultants.

MS. SCHOOR:		Yeah that’s what our intent is but it is something that formerly has to be in the township’s name.

MR. MCGROARTY:	So that would be a condition of any approvals.  I think Ms. Greene may address the other issue of the ordinance itself in terms of . . . but since you’ll be the operator of this we don’t have to (inaudible) the details in the ordinance you know this stuff better than I do you’ll adhere to the three year deed restriction, the affirmative marketing and everything else.

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s correct yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:	So to capsulize that your complying with all of the applicable sections of 400-85 of the ordinance that deals with affordable housing except for those things that don’t apply phasing and so on that may be approved to deviate from by the Board.

MS. SCHOOR:		That’s correct.

MR. LAVERY:		Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:	 You answered six already that’s the administrative agent.  That’s it.  The last one actually is for Mr. Maser but there’s no detail on the plans you guys can fix that.  (inaudible).

MR. WEISS:		We’re in agreement (inaudible).

MR. MCGROARTY:	That’s it.

MR. WEISS:		Michael I don’t know if you had more questions?

MR. LAVERY:		I have no more questions Mr. Chairman.

MR. WEISS:		Anybody else from the Planning Board have any other questions for Ms. Schoor?  Nelson?

MR. RUSSELL:		My concern is our history with Toll Brothers has been extensive delays in development.  What’s your estimate of the three phases indicated?

MR. LAVERY:		What’s the estimate for the three phases to be complete?

MR. MASER:		Estimate of time?  

MR. LAVERY:		Yeah.

MR. MASER:		If the market holds up you’re looking at five years, five and a half years.

MR. WEISS:		I think that we’re probably not going to pick that up.

MS. COFONI:		Right Mr. Lavery what was that answer?

MR. LAVERY:		Yeah five to five and a half years if the market continues to pick up.  

MS. COFONI:		That’s for completion of all three phases?

MR. LAVERY:		All three phases?

MR. MASER:		Right.

MS. COFONI:		Okay.

MR. RUSSELL:		Thank you.

MR. LAVERY:		All right now I’m told that it’s two and a half years to hit that 50 percent C.O. mark where all of the 57 units of moderate if its approved will be built by.  

MR. WEISS:		Joe?

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Just to kind of piggy back on that question, should you receive approval when would foresee breaking ground on the construction?

MR. LAVERY:		We’ll bring Mr. Majewski up from Toll Brothers up.

MR. WEISS:		Let’s open it to the public if anybody from the public has any questions for Ms. Schoor please if you would come to the podium state your name and address for the record and address your questions to Ms. Schoor.

MR. WIEN:		Bret Wien 60 Pleasant Hill Road, Flanders, NJ I’m adjacent property Block 6000, Lot 10.  You can check the website on how I disagree with Regency of Flanders or how I’d like to call it tying me down.  Now my understanding, this is . . . you gave all of these approvals, you waived all of the rules so that you can get low income housing.  Okay that’s what the State says.  Now you’re saying  well if we don’t get to 140 units you’re not going to even get them so you get no credit for it, you get all of the disasters the traffic, the flooding are they going to have to put up a bond for those 57 units?  Then your also saying those 57 units of the regular public knows those are not senior housing, those are going to have kids 150 to 200 kids possible at over $12,000 per student you’re looking at some rather . . . . and then they’re asking for an abatement from any taxes where is this project going?  Like I said if they’re going to have to put up a bond for this if it doesn’t go through?  

MR. WEISS:		Mr. Wien I don’t know if Ms. Schoor is the person to answer this question.

MR. LAVERY:		Well I mean I can answer one, first of all we’ve already got the approval so we have to build 57 units we’re not changing the mix so the number of people is not going to change if the Board approves it to all moderate.  Its 57 units that we’re required to do I don’t know that the Board, there may be some members that think that was a good thing, think it’s a bad thing it really doesn’t matter because it’s a requirement.  So we have to build 20 percent of this project had to be low and moderate income all we’re asking is that the 57 that we already have to build which is the same exact bedroom mix be moderate.  So if the Board approves . . . 

MR. WIEN:		Even if you go bankrupt?

MR. LAVERY:		Well if I go bankrupt . . .

MR. WIEN:		We have 140 units you get nothing?  The town gets no credit.

MR. LAVERY:		Well I understand that you’re against our project in any way, shape or form.

MR. WIEN:		Yeah I know because your firm represented me in front of this council too so it’s a rather interesting conflict of interest since Courter, Cohen are your law firm there but . . .

MR. LAVERY:		Well if you think I did anything wrong you file the appropriate documents okay?  Now I’m just telling you . . .

MR. WIEN:		Just a matter of record I’m sorry.

MR. WEISS:		Mr. Wien I think your question is . . . I think your saying what happens if they fail to build that 113 unit.  The question is is there going to be a bond.

MR. WIEN:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		Let’s leave it, the question is that.  Gene is there bonds that are posted?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Not for the actual units there’s bonds for improvements.

MR. WEISS:		So before they start construction they’re going to have to post a bond that says they’re going to do “X”, “Y” and “Z”.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	 As far as the site improvements you know there is building permits but there’s no bond for the actual building structures.  

MS. COFONI:		The basis is that the purpose of the bond is that if they don’t make the improvements the municipality then gets to step in and use the bond to complete the improvements.  The municipality is never going to step in and complete a building so the buildings are not bonded.  Its roadway, curbing, detention basins those types of things that would be bonded not the actual construction of buildings.  And that’s not specific to this development that’s across the board because a municipality is never going to go in and complete a private development in that way.  It’s typically more roadway improvements that the municipality will ultimately . . .

MR. WEISS:		Those improvements will be built before the first CO is issue is that accurate?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Not completely.  There might be some improvements are not going to be done before . . . depending on where that first building is.  

MR. WEISS:		So like this application this project like any other application there is no guarantee that the developer will not go bankrupt and that’s just a fact of life it sounds like.  I think your question is is there a guarantee and the answer is no.  

MR. MCGROARTY:	Well and that’s the thing Mr. Chairman that’s why I asked the question earlier, the three apartment buildings will be built or the construction will start during the first phase of the market.  So it’s not like . . . and if they followed the other schedule which is in the report I mean you can look at the numbers and it gets a little weird but I mean if you’re going to build three buildings it’s going to start at some point probably mid-way through the first phase of the market and so those buildings are going to be up.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	And another thing too is before they get a C.O. on one of those buildings those improvements will be done relating to those buildings.  

MR. WEISS:		And although Mr. Wien I did hear you talk, although it wasn’t testified to tonight about school children.  There are no school children on this property.

MR. WIEN:		Yes there is this . . .

MR. WEISS:		The market rate permits it.

MR. WIEN:		Well that’s the affordable housing unit is all school . . . that’s open to everybody that’s not seniors only the 55 and older is the market rate.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Yeah that’s already been approved.

MR. WEISS:		That’s a factor of this project.

MR. WIEN:		Yeah but I’m saying this is the first testimony that is ever seen on the record where they’re saying . . . . you now part of the other thing to deal with your going to get all of the tax money, it’s the greatest thing going but we knew we were going to get some school children because it said the affordable housing is open to all age groups.  And now they’re saying they’re also saying they are go for complete tax abatement on the affordable housing so you’re looking over a million and a half dollars a year on school in school children.  

MR. MCGROARTY:	A pilot is not a complete tax abatement.  It’s not the Planning Board’s jurisdiction but it’s not a complete tax abatement.

MR. WIEN:		But only for the affordable housing.

MS. SCHOOR:		And the pilot would only be on the affordable housing.

MR. MCGROARTY:	But that doesn’t mean no taxes.  Pilot does not mean no taxes it’s a variation on the tax that’s left but again that’s a discussion for the Township Council.

MR. WIEN:		Okay then the only other thing I don’t know if the right one, I see you got your DEP permits has anybody checked, has the US Environmental Protection Agency issued the final permits for this thing?  I mean the town is talking of taking procession of wetlands, there’ve been discussions of putting tractors and parking stuff on a barn above the river.  I mean if anything leaks there  . . . if anybody has followed the news you see the guy building at a pond out west and he got the DEP approvals and for their State got all of the others and then the USEPA came in and said because of the new wetlands rules and clean water act that I mean even a puddle going to a stream, all of that makes it under the USEPA’s jurisdiction.  You’re taking ownership of almost half of this property.  I mean maybe the applicant can give you a letter from the USEPA stating that they’re fine with the project and that’s fine, before the town attorney before you accept you except this wetlands and you start doing something with elevated property your looking . . . I mean tens of thousands a dollars a day in remediation fees and fines from the USEPA.  Now the DEP permit that they were issued doesn’t say whether they have to or doesn’t it just says there could be all kinds of other permits, and maybe that’s something that should have been asked to Mr. Maser I don’t know where it’s going.  But I mean it’s more to the town attorney and the town engineer.  If the USEPA has signed off on it nothing can happen.

MR. WEISS:		Well let me turn that over to our attorney.

MS. COFONI:		I guess there’s two questions here one is if DEP approvals have been entertained for the development Mr. Maser are you able to answer that?

MR. MASER:		Yes all approvals County, State, DEP all agency approvals that are required to start construction have been fully obtained and the conditions have been met with.

MS. COFONI:		Okay and then I guess the second aspect was your concern about environmental contaminants on the open space property.  And I’ll tell you our office also represents municipalities and just as a normal course of obtaining open space should you phase one environmental studies and the purpose of those is to find out if there’s any remediation that’s needed and that remediation is almost always then done before you obtain it, before you accept it as open space.  So while I’m not doing the acquisition of those the township attorney will be I’m sure that process will be followed.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Yeah and it has to be approved by . . . and again the open space acquisition has to be approved by the Township Council.  

MS. COFONI:		Yes.

MR. WIEN:		But my other thing is the United States Environmental Protection Agency not the DEP.  Like I said a clean water act is a federal rule you’ve got a Class I trout brook running into the Raritan River that’s a federal water.

MR. LAVERY:		Whatever permits we need we have obtained and I do not believe an EPA permit is one of them.  If it was we would obtain it.

MR. WIEN:		Then you’re going to go on the record saying that if the town if found liable that you’ll indemnify them?   

MR. LAVERY:		No what I said was that . . .

MS. COFONI:		If I may.  That’s really not for this Board.  This Board doesn’t deal with the actual open space acquisition that would be the township . . . .

MR. WIEN:		Well it’s not just acquisition it’s approval of a project that could be federally regulated.

MR. MCGROARTY:	It’s already approved they’re asking . . .

MR. WIEN:		Not federally it’s not.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	It doesn’t have to be.

MR. MCGROARTY:	It doesn’t have to be.

MR. WIEN:		How do you know?

MR. WEISS:		Okay it seems to me you asked a question the answer is it doesn’t have to be.  We can debate it the answer is it doesn’t have to be.

MR. WIEN:		Okay I’ll take it that it will be in the record that it doesn’t have to be because then I’ll contact the EPA and find out.  But I needed to have it on the record that the Planning Board said that they didn’t find, as in the developer said that they didn’t need to have the EPA so we’ll see where it goes.  Thank you.  

MR. WEISS:		`That’s fairly accurate.  Anybody else from the public have any questions of Ms. Schoor?  Seeing none Ms. Schoor thank you very much.  Michael let me go back to you you have . . . you were going to bring up a representative from Toll Brothers to answer a couple questions that you were getting credit for answering.  So before you get too comfortable let’s swear you in.

(JAMES MAJEWSKI SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MS. COFONI:		If you could state your full name spelling your last name and giving your business for the record please. 

MR. MAJEWSKI:		James Majewski (M-A-J-E-W-S-K-I) 250 Gibraltor Road, Horsham, PA  19044.

MR. WEISS:		Mr. Majewski your position with Toll Brothers is?

MR. MAJEWSKI:		I’m the senior vice president.

MR. WEISS:		Thank you.  I think we asked you to come up because there was a couple of questions about your idea of build out, how long it will take, when you’ll start so I know Mr. Fleischner asked when you project you’ll start breaking ground.

MR. MAJEWSKI:		Right now our projection is if everything goes the way we think it is we’ll be breaking ground in September, buying the property in August breaking ground in September opening for sale in May from models.  We expect the pace of 35 to 38 homes a year the market can go up and down a little bit but you know we figured it’s a 5, 5-1/2 year job.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Thank you you answered all of my questions in good faith.

MR. WEISS:		Anybody else from the Planning Board?  Mike I don’t think you had any other questions I think that came up . . . .

MR. LAVERY:		No exactly.

MR. WEISS:		Chuck or Gene anything?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	No.

MR. MCGROARTY:	No.

MR. WEISS:		Tiena?

MS. COFONI:		No.

MR. WEISS:		It’s only fair let’s open it to the public for Mr. Majewski if anybody has any questions based on the testimony he just delivered.  Seeing none, thank you.

MR. MAJEWSKI:		You’re welcome.

MR. WEISS:		So I believe your now about to announce your planner?

MR. LAVERY:		That’s correct Mr. Chairman.

MR. WEISS:		And so again you’ve been previously sworn Ms. Green?

MS. GREEN:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		So maybe if you would for the record state your name and address.

MS. GREEN:		Yes Darlene A. Green (G-R-E-E-N) my office address is 53 Frontage Road Clinton, New Jersey.

MR. WEISS:		Now Ms. Green you have not testified in front of this Planning Board?

MS. GREEN:		I have not.

MR. WEISS:		Well welcome maybe you’ll tell us a little bit about yourself.

MS. GREEN:		Sure I’m a licensed professional planner in the State of New Jersey I am American Institute Certified Planner which is a national certification.  I have a Bachelors of Architecture from Lehigh University and a Masters from in City and Regional Planning from Rutgers.  Currently I represent ten municipalities as a planner in New Jersey, in Warren, Hunterdon, Passaic County, Bergen County and East Hanover here in Morris County.  Besides the ten communities that I presently represent I have appeared before roughly two dozen Boards across the State.  

MR. WEISS:		Okay well very impressive welcome.  Let me turn to the Planning Board if anybody has any questions or concerns about Ms. Green as their expert planner now is a good time to speak up.  Seeing none we’ll accept you as an expert planner for this evening.

MS. GREEN:		Excellent thank you.  I have a hand out which is an outline of my testimony so if I start it down here take one and pass it down so you can follow along.  Okay so the hand out you have before you is essentially an outline of my testimony that I plan to give tonight.  My colleagues have stolen a little bit of my thunder here so I’m going to breeze through the first half and really get to the meat of the planning testimony.  For those of you who are following along on pages 2 and 3 you’ll see an aerial that shows the existing conditions of the site in case you forgot what it looked like, on page 3 I’ve actually cropped out a piece of your zoning map and highlighted the subject property showing that it’s located in the R-7 zone.  I’ve also included on page 4 a reduced size site plan, although I’m sure you probably can’t read it I realized that after I printed this out.  As Mr. Lavery mentioned tonight we’re seeking two variance requests both of which are from section 400-100 of your ordinance which is the 
R-7 zone standards.  The first one is for the 50 percent low income units, and the second one is for the phasing schedule which is included in your ordinance which is copied directly from COAH’s rules.  I think what will be most helpful is on page 7 to explain the phasing.  I have included at the bottom of page 7 a chart, in the gray it shows your ordinance requirements and in the yellow it shows and illustrates our proposed delivery schedule.  It should be noted that this delivery schedule as I mentioned is taken directly from COAH’s rules unfortunately which have been invalidated and the proposed rules actually have a different phasing schedule just for future reference.  So what you see here in the chart is the COAH requirements and the township requirements break up the delivery of COAH units in five phases.  The first phase does not require any COAH units and we are not proposing to provide any.  In the second phase technically under your ordinance we are required to provide six COAH units as has been testified to our goal is to provide all 57 of the COAH units before the 113th market rate unit is CO’d.  So what you’ll see in the chart is that in phase 3 on this chart we’ll be providing 57 of those COAH units so we’re actually ahead of your required phasing schedule for both phase 3 and phase 4.  You’ll see we’re ahead by 28 in phase 3 and ahead by 14 COAH units in phase 4 so we’re really asking only for a deviation from one of the five phases required from your ordinance.  This 50/50 split is a concern that many municipalities have because of course you don’t want to be left at some point in the future having to make up those 50 percent low income units elsewhere in your municipality.  And I know if I were sitting on your side of the table I’d be worried about the same exact issue.  So what I put together were some findings of fact some of which Ms. Schoor discussed.  The first one on page 9 is from UHAC which are the Uniform Housing Affordable Controls, this is a companion that no one really talks about but it is actually the companion document to all of COAH’s rules.  What the Board should know is that while COAH’s rules both the procedural and the substantive have been invalidated and are currently in the process of being revised and proposed UHAC’s rules have remained untouched during this whole court process.  And what I have included here on page 9 is actually the second page from the UHAC rules and I’ve highlighted one section from that.  And underneath the purpose and applicability of the UHAC rules it says that these rules do not apply to units qualifying for the federal low income housing tax credit under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.  So it’s interesting that there is this caveat at the beginning of the UHAC rules that says all of the following rules contained in that document do not apply to low income housing tax credit projects.  Especially the 50 percent low income requirement is included in UHAC.  So while the municipality’s ordinance requires the 50 percent actually under UHAC it does not.  On page 10 is the second finding of fact, back in July 2009 the legislature adopted PL2009 Chapter 82.  Some of you may recall that this act was conveniently called the conversion act it allowed age restricted projects that have fallen into trouble to be able to convert out to non-age restricted projects if they dedicated a portion of their units as affordable units.  Interestingly enough the very last section of the conversion law dealt with crediting, how do you credit against the fair share obligation.  And I’ve included this very lengthy statement from the last section of the conversion law which essentially states that a housing unit that’s either financed in part or in whole by tax credits cannot be inhibited or prevented from receiving a credit because of UHAC’s rules.  So what’s interesting is there is actually state law that now supersedes almost every municipality’s rules requiring this 50 percent set aside.  So they essentially said you can’t use UHAC to inhibit the prevention of receiving a credit for a low income housing unit.  I know very confusing as everything with COAH is confusing.  Last but not least on page 11 you’ll actually see a copy of a letter that Ms. Schoor mentioned that this is not the first time they’ve done this, proposing all moderate income units and a modified phasing schedule.  In fact back in 2010 her firm was down in Gloucester County in Warwick Township and they were proposing another 100 moderate income project.  Warwick Township had the same concern that Mount Olive has what about the low income?  Are you sure that we’re not going to have to double income units at some future point.  So Warwick reached out to COAH and said you know please tell us is this true are they really exempt from this rule.  And what happened almost a year after the conversion law was passed Sean Thompson the Acting Executive Director of COAH issued this letter to Warwick which essentially reiterates the conversion law and states that UHAC cannot be used to inhibit the crediting and as a result Warwick is not required to make up the low income units not provided by that project was called the Oaks at Weatherby elsewhere in the municipality.  So this is one of the reasons why our team is so confident in the ability to get another letter instead of saying Warwick Township saying Mount Olive  Township from COAH because it’s been done before.  So on page 12 we really get into the C variances that’s why we’re here tonight for these two minor deviations.  We’re seeking relief under the C-2 variance which talks about an application relating to a specific piece of property where the purposes of the Municipal Land Use Law would be advanced by a deviation from the Zoning Ordinance requirements and the benefits of the deviations would outweigh any detriment.  On page 13 is where I start my C testimony.  C-2 variance relief can be granted for the variances because the application before you tonight can meet the five tests for demonstrating the benefits of the deviations outweigh the detriments.  The first test asks do the variances relate to a specific piece of property, interestingly enough the application before you tonight is the only two properties within the township zoned R-7 within Mount Olive, in fact this zone was specifically created for these two properties.  Furthermore you have affordable units being financed in part by low income housing tax credits making this a unique situation.  The second test on page 14 asks would the purposes of the Municipal Land Use Law be advanced by a deviation from the zoning ordinance.  I reviewed the Municipal Land Use Law purposes and there’s really three main ones that would be advanced by these two deviations.  The first one discusses encouraging action to guide the appropriate use of development that would promote the public health, safety, morals and general welfare.  By approving these deviations we’re ensuring that we can get the financing we need to build affordable housing for families who have a tough time finding rental housing in the State that they can afford.  Letter E discusses promoting the establishment of appropriate population densities and concentrations that would contribute to the well being of persons in neighborhoods.  We’re not changing the density here we’re keeping the density at the same that was approved at the previous application, and last but not least we have letter G which discusses providing sufficient space and appropriate locations for a variety of agricultural, residential, recreational, commercial and industrial uses.  The third test on page 15 asks whether or not the variances can be granted without substantial detriment to the public good, and usually when you’re looking at a “C” variance this is more concerned with you know if your encroaching into a side yard or if your extending the building height how that would impact the neighbors.  These variances are not physical variances that would change the way those buildings would look, these  buildings you will never know if these variances are granted because they’re going to look the same no matter what.  As indicated in the findings of fact and also acknowledged by our willingness to get a letter from COAH the township will not be responsible to make up those low income units that are not being built under this project due to the conversion law and the UHAC exemption.  The amended delivery schedule will only result in the shortfall of six units during phase 2 but we’re going to be actually providing more units than is required in phases 3 and 4 and granting those deviations will not harm the health, safety or general welfare.  The fourth test looks at the intent and purpose of your zoning ordinance and your zone plan.  As I mentioned we have UHAC which supersedes Mount Olive’s ordinance as well as PL2009 Chapter 82 which also supersedes Mount Olive’s ordinance so in a way the 50 percent low income split isn’t really applicable here because you’re already superseding.  Furthermore we have a letter from COAH’s Acting Executive Director that affirms what has been spelt out in the legislature’s conversion law.  On page 17 you’ll see the . . .

MR. WEISS:		Excuse me, you have a letter or you’re going to get a letter?

MS. GREEN:		We have the (inaudible) letter but then we’re also committed to go get a letter from COAH as well. 

MR. WEISS:		So you’re committing to get a letter.

MS. GREEN:		Yes.  

MR. WEISS:		Okay.

MS. GREEN:		By December 31 right Mike?

MR. LAVERY:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		By the end of the year.

MS. GREEN:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		Okay.

MS. GREEN:		On page 17 test scores continued, the intent really of the delivery phasing schedule by COAH is meant more for projects where the market and the affordable are mixed together because they want to ensure that the affordable are scattered throughout the development.  In the R-7 zone you actually do not require the affordable to be comingled you in fact allow them to be separate and in this case they’ll actually have end owners.  So while phasing is important when you have that mixture of units to ensure that they’re scattered about, here it’s not as important because we have two really separate projects.  And as I mentioned the phasing only impacts phase 2 that’s our only deviation of the five phases.  Approving a deviation for phase 2 will not impair the intent or the purpose of your ordinance in fact we’re going to deliver ahead of schedule for phases 3 and 4.  Last but not least test five, that asks us to look at the benefits of the deviations if they outweigh any detriments.  Approving the application will allow for affordable housing units to be constructed which will provide housing for households making less than 80 percent of median income.  As Ms. Schoor mentioned not only is this moderate income units but because of all of the exemptions and how they calculate income it could also include households that would typically fall into low income.  It’s going to provide 57 credits towards the township’s outstanding COAH obligation whatever number that may be in the future.  And furthermore it assists Mount Olive in providing for its constitutionally mandated obligation.  Last but not least on page 19 the phasing deviation will actually construct the affordable units faster than under your township ordinance.  As we’ve agreed to all of the affordable units will be built and ready for occupancy before the 113th market rate unit is CO’d and permitting 100 percent of the affordable units to be moderate income does not cause a detrimental impact on Mount Olive as the township does not have a low income component as will be demonstrated by the letter from COAH by the end of the year.  

MR. WEISS:		We’ve heard over the years many variance your testimony is outstanding I think that was extremely thorough I can’t imagine anyone has a doubt as whether you made your proofs necessary.  I’d say that and I will turn to Chuck and see if he has any kind of . . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:	Even if I did with a set up like that?  But no I don’t but I do just to be . . . another thing I mean I know it was absolutely perfect and addressed all the issues.  The Board should be aware and I guess Tiena will be aware of this in the resolution, quite rightly the testimony addressed the ordinance but on page 2 of the report you will recall that the phasing schedule for this specific project was different.  So I agree they’re asking and the relief tonight is from the ordinance requirements for the phasing but it also modifies the prior approved phasing of the plan for this project.  Because this project  was going to come in at three phases with its market, we had a commensurate three phase delivery system from COAH.  So it’s not a big deal just would be worth mentioning in the resolution that this modification to that earlier approval.

MR. WEISS:		I have actually I have a concern.  And maybe not a concern, you talked on page 11 you referenced the Warwick letter.

MS. GREEN:		Yes.

MR. WEISS:		Previous to your testimony we’ve made it very clear that there’s going to a letter and if we don’t get a letter then the deal is off essentially and we’re not going to give you that 100 percent moderate.  My question to you is just kind of a simple maybe an opinion how likely because they approved the Woolwich situation do you think that they’ll turn around and automatically say we already did it once we’ll approve it in Mount Olive as well?  You seem very confident that that’s going to automatically (inaudible).

MS. GREEN:		Well actually I might ask Barbara to come back up because you know this is what they do for a living and the majority of their projects are 100 percent moderate so she might be able to tell you how many times they’ve received letters.  

MR. LAVERY:		I would just submit that the letter to Warwick sites the same law that Ms. Green said in her testimony.  So I think they would be hard pressed and God knows what will come out of COAH but . . . 

MR. WEISS:		I don’t doubt that, Michael I don’t doubt that but I just can tell you that the Planning Board we will never say well we did it once before we’ll do it again.  Every application is judged on its own merit and I’d like to think that COAH will do the same.  

MR. LAVERY:		The only difference I would say is that COAH has cited and said the reason for their opinion that you can do this and that you can use all the moderate and then you don’t have to supply those low income is based upon . . . they cite the same exact law that Ms. Green cited so you know it’s a little different them issuing an opinion then say the Planning Board making a determination because again it’s not that they just said well we think it’s this and this instance they cited the very things that Ms. Green cited and said . . . .

MR. WEISS:		And I say that the pressure is on you not on us because you have to get it . . .

MR. LAVERY:		If we don’t get it that’s correct.

MR. WEISS:		I just bring it up because it’s just an interesting thing.  Did somebody have a question, Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:		So it doesn’t address what the conditions of Woolwich Township existed at the time as far as where they stood with their COAH obligations as compared to Mount Olive Township who knows what the difference would be that could be able to be different consideration.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Just on that I mean I’ve had a conversation with Sean Thompson about this project and the long and short of it is they need to come back and ask for that letter.  Not only as you rightly point out Woolwich is not in Mount Olive, the rules that were in place supporting four years ago with Woolwich are different now as we know.  I have no doubt they’ll get a letter as long as COAH is willing to (inaudible) whether it’s staff or a COAH Board or whether Sean will do it on his own I’m confident they’ll get the letter but we want the letter.  I think that’s the bottom line.  As COAH will tell them as told me look things have changed in four years so I don’t think there’s anything in the new rules, the proposed rules that would interfere with this but its better that we get that documentation.

MR. WEISS:		Anybody on the Planning Board have any questions for Ms. Green?  Chuck did you have anything?  I know you had mentioned n your report was that you might come back to your report as it pertains to Ms. Green’s testimony?  

MR. MCGROARTY:	No it was just Section 400-85 and I think Ms. Schoor addressed that.

MR. WEISS:		I just want to make sure there was nothing else that you know.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Thank you no.

MR. WEISS:		Michael did you have any other questions for Ms. Green?

MR. LAVERY:		No I do not Mr. Chairman.

MR. WEISS:		Okay so let me do this, let me open it to the public if anybody from the public has any questions on the testimony delivered by Ms. Green now is the time.  And I see none from the public again to the Planning Board anything else for Ms. Green.  Ms. Green thank you very much.

MS. GREEN:		Thank you.

MR. LAVERY:		That concludes our testimony Mr. Chairman so we’d ask the Board to consider approving the amended preliminary and final site plan and amended preliminary and final major subdivision approval subject to the conditions that were mentioned earlier throughout the hearing.  

MR. WEISS:		So Tiena I see you have a long list of conditions maybe we should review those before we . . .  So actually while you’re getting notes together let me open it the public.  If anybody from the public has any comments of any portion of this hearing tonight now would be a time to approach if anybody has any questions or concerns.  Seeing none I’ll close it to the public and then go back to where I was going with the conditions that would be associated with a motion.

MS. COFONI:		Okay I have several as you mentioned.  The applicant to obtain written confirmation from COAH that the township will not be required to make up the low income units elsewhere in the town and if they do not obtain the letter by December 31, 2014 the development the COAH units will be back to the 50/50 split of low and moderate income.  The applicant will obtain approval of a motion from COAH for the phasing that motion to be formally submitted by the town but . . . well I guess the town has to be the applicant.

MR. MCGROARTY:	We’re not sure of that.

MS. COFONI:		Oh okay, okay.  Well I’ll include the second part which is that community investment strategies will make the motion and defend that before COAH.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	I know that there’s a difference but my understanding was that they cannot issue the formal request it has to come from the township.

MR. MCGROARTY:	I want to check that Mr. Fleischner I’m not sure of that.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Yeah so maybe that . . .you can’t have that wording in there that you just said.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Well that’s what I said . . .

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Yeah, yeah.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Leave it somewhat ambiguous.  

MR. FLEISCHNER:	It’s got to be very ambiguous because that just needs to be clarified because Ms. Schoor is saying that they cannot request the . . . they’ll do the defending of it but they can’t request . . . .

MS. COFONI:		They can’t make the motion it has to be submitted in the town’s name.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Right.

MS. COFONI:		I’ll word it so that that addresses that we’re not sure about that.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	John you guys understand that from the Council’s standpoint am I correct?

MR. MANIA:		Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:	I want to look into that.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Yes, yes and I mean Chuck can . . .

MS. COFONI:		I also have . . .

MR. FLEISCHNER:	And could that then . . . that has to then be clarified 100 percent how it’s going to work before the resolution is voted on at the next meeting.

MR. MCGROARTY:	We can work that out.

MS. COFONI:		Okay.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	All right because you can’t approve the motion with that not finalized.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Well it could be one or the other but I mean . . . . we’ll check it out and we’ll talk to them.

MS. COFONI:		All conditions of the prior resolution except as modified by this application will continue to apply, and then Mr. Buczynski had some plan revisions previously requested in his January 24 report must be incorporated into the plans for Regency at Flanders, there’s a requirement of posting of bonds for the instillation of concrete monuments, detailed proposed markers these are all items that were previously mentioned that will need to be continued into this resolution.  Oh and the Clover Hill Treatment Plant modifications will be installed in phase 1. 

MR. WEISS:		I had one you might have said it . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:	And the traffic light.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	The traffic to the traffic signal too.

MS. COFONI:		But that’s what they propose.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:	Right.

MS. COFONI:		So it’s just because it’s a change I put it in as a condition.

MR. WEISS:		I have one I think we had a conversation about the administrative agent will be approved through the Council.

MS. COFONI:		Oh yes, oh yes I do have that.  Township to approve CIS as administrator of COAH units.

MR. WEISS:		Correct.

MS. COFONI:		I do have that I’m sorry I missed it.

MR. WEISS:		That’s why you have me sitting next to you.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Yeah I mean it’s not that if the township Council can decide whether it’s CIS or Mr. Rigazza who is the administrative agent. 

MS. COFONI:		Them being administrator is subject to township approval is a better way to say it.

MR. WEISS:		I think we had . . . because I wrote it as we were talking the administrative agent is to be approved by the Council whoever that may be.  

MR. MCGROARTY:	Exactly.

MR. WEISS:		So those conditions summarized is what we discussed tonight.  Mr. Fleischner if I will?

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Yeah I’d like to move that PB 14-06 Toll, etc., etc. with the appropriate conditions be approved.

MR. MANIA:		I’ll second.

MR. WEISS:		Thank you Mr. Mania.  Is there any conversation or comments from the Board?  Seeing none Catherine roll call.

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Joe Fleischner		- yes
			Judy Johnson		- yes
			David Koptyra		- yes
			John Mania		- yes
			Nelson Russell		- 

MR. RUSSELL:		I voted no on the original Marveland Farms I’m going to be consistent and I’ll vote no.

MS. NATAFALUSY:	Scott Van Ness		- yes
			Kim Mott		- yes
			Howie Weiss		- yes

MR. LAVERY:		Thank you very much.


MR. WEISS:		Kim came to me Scott with a concern I thought maybe we should discuss it.  

MS. MOTT:		I’m just concerned about as I drive through town, this past weekend I’ve been all over and I noticed all of the clothing bins some look like they’re hand made in someone’s garage, some are Planet Aid, some are . . . they’re just popping up on vacant properties or popping up in the middle of Sam’s Club parking lot, there’s one up here at Limerick’s, there’s one down on . . . .

MR. VAN NESS:		Limerick’s . . .

MS. MOTT:		Yeah well you know what I mean.

MR. VAN NESS:		Yes I can address it.  The township recently passed an ordinance that prohibits them being placed anywhere.  Some of these places have already been contacted to remove the bins and the property owners are likely to be getting a letter soon indicated that they have to be removed as well.  Where bins are allowed to be kept are at our EMS stations, our emergency services locations, the fire house, first aid squad or here at town hall.

MS. MOTT:		Okay I was just concerned they just seem to be popping up.

MR. VAN NESS:		They are popping up but we lose some and some pop up we’ve actually I think we’re actually a little bit ahead of the game.

MS. MOTT:		Okay I just wanted to bring that up.

MR. VAN NESS:		We are aware of it.

MR. WEISS:		Joe?

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Chuck I have a question for Chuck.  Could we put together a quick list or a list as quickly as we could of the ordinances that we need to revise because . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:	We’ve been working on that actually Catherine and I the other day actually yes we can do that.  We’ve been working on that because there’s almost from cover to cover of changes.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	Because we really need to you know we start doing it and then all of a sudden it seems like we’re not doing it and I’d really like to shoot by the end of this year getting if not all of them at least 70 percent of what we have to do done.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Right very good point and we were just last Friday we sat down a bit and looked at the . . there’s a lot of things right out there some administrative and some . . .

MR. FLEISCHNER:	I mean if you want to get together we could just sit down and we could put a priority list I’d be happy to.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Sure.

MR. FLEISCHNER:	I mean you tell me whenever you’re around just give me a call.

MR. MCGROARTY:	Yeah I think we should.

MR. WEISS:		Just one last thing as you know we handle a lot of variance requests here on the Planning Board and I keep a cheat sheet that I probably have in front of me that I wrote three or four or five years ago when Ed Buzak took the time to explain to us the criteria that needs to be met.  And I think that what Ms. Green put together is a pretty nice little format.  I suggest maybe for reference if you can take out all of her proofs but if you want to keep yourself a cheat sheet on what needs to happen during these C-2 variance requests I think she did a pretty nice job on summarizing.  Chuck would you agree a little overkill but still very thorough.

MR. MCGROARTY:	It’s not overkill I think she did a nice job.

MR. WEISS:		No she really did a very nice job I just think that if we have something in writing . . .

MR. VAN NESS:		Chuck would have had one more page.

MR. WEISS:		There’s no doubt.  The point I’m making is if you’re looking for some kind of reference this is a fairly good document to keep, maybe get rid of the specifics but it’s a nice document I’m going to do that.  Anything else?  

MR. VAN NESS:		Motion to adjourn sir.

MR. WEISS:		Scott motion to adjourn all in favor?

EVERYONE:		Aye.

MR. WEISS:		Good night.

(MEETING ADJOURNED AT 9:10:25 P.M.)
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